
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
WESTERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK 
_____________________________________ 

LINDA BRODSKY, M.D. 
65 LeBrun Circle 
Amherst, New York 14226 
 
   Plaintiff,   COMPLAINT 
 
 v.      Civil Action No.:  
 
KALEIDA HEALTH 
100 High Street 
Buffalo, New York 14203 
 
   Defendant. 
_____________________________________ 

 
 

 Plaintiff, Linda Brodsky, M.D. (“Dr. Brodsky”), by and through her attorneys, Kavinoky 

Cook LLP, for her complaint against defendant, Kaleida Health (“Kaleida”), alleges: 

NATURE OF CLAIM 

 1. This is an action for declaratory and injunctive relief, back-pay, compensatory 

and punitive damages and other relief to redress the violation of plaintiff's rights under The 

Equal Pay Act of 1963, as amended (29 U.S.C. §206(d), et seq.)(“EPA”), Title VII of the Civil 

Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. §2000e, et seq.)(“Title VII”), §296 of the New York 

Human Rights Law, (N.Y. Executive Law §296(1)(a) and (e), (6) and (7)) (“NYHRL”) and 

under the New York Equal Pay Law, (N.Y. Labor Law §190 et seq.)(“NYEPL”).  

 2. Dr. Brodsky claims that Kaleida retaliated against her because she pursued and 

attempted to enforce her employment rights under Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the 

NYEPL.   
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JURISDICTION 

 3. Jurisdiction is predicated on 28 U.S.C. §§1331, 1343(4), 1367(a), 2201 and 2202; 

and Section 706(f) and (g) of Title VII, 42 U.S.C. §2000e-5(f) and (g). 

VENUE 

 4. Venue is proper in this judicial district under Section 706(f)(3) of Title VII, 42 

U.S.C. §2000e-5(f)(3), and under 28 U.S.C. §1391(b). 

PARTIES 

 5. Dr. Brodsky is a female medical doctor specializing in pediatric otolaryngology.  

Dr. Brodsky has resided at all relevant times in Erie County, New York. 

 6. Kaleida is a not-for-profit corporation organized and existing under the Laws of 

the State of New York, having its principal office in Erie County, New York. 

 7. Kaleida is, and at all relevant times was, an employer engaged in interstate 

commerce employing more than 500 persons, subject to Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the 

NYEPL. 

 8. Kaleida is a successor by merger to the Children’s Hospital of Buffalo (“CHOB”).  

 9. Dr. Brodsky has been employed by Kaleida since 1998.  Before that Dr. Brodsky 

was employed by CHOB, beginning in 1987.  Through February 2, 2007, Dr. Brodsky had been 

employed continuously by CHOB and then Kaleida for more than 20 years. 

OPERATIVE FACTS AND PROCEDURE 

 10. During the 300 days immediately preceding the Charge referred to in the next 

paragraph, Kaleida discriminated and retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because of her gender and 

her complaints of gender discrimination and retaliation.  
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 11. Dr. Brodsky filed a charge of discrimination and retaliation against Kaleida with 

the EEOC on or about January 12, 2007 (Charge No.525-2007-00431).  Dr. Brodsky’s Charge is 

annexed as Exhibit A and incorporated by reference. 

 12. Kaleida fired Dr. Brodsky on February 2, 2007. 

 13. Dr. Brodsky filed an amendment to her Charge on February 12, 2007 adding the 

retaliatory termination of her employment.  A copy of the amended Charge is annexed as Exhibit 

B and incorporated by reference. 

 14. The EEOC issued a "Notice of Right to Sue" letter to Dr. Brodsky for the Charge 

on March 9, 2007.  A copy of the right to sue letter is annexed as Exhibit C and incorporated by 

reference.  This complaint was filed within 90 days of Dr. Brodsky's receipt of the right to sue 

letter she received from the EEOC. 

FIRST CLAIM 

 15. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 14 by this reference. 

 16. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she opposed the 

defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, as is set forth in detail in her 

charges of discrimination incorporated herein, in violation of Title VII. 

 17. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she filed the EEOC charges 

incorporated herein to oppose the defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, 

in violation of Title VII. 

 18. Dr. Brodsky has suffered, is now suffering and will continue to suffer certain 

kinds of irreparable injury and monetary damages unless and until this Court grants relief to the 

plaintiff. 
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SECOND CLAIM 

 19. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 14 by this reference. 

 20. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she opposed the 

defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, as is set forth in detail in her 

charges of discrimination incorporated herein, in violation of the EPA. 

 21. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she filed the EEOC charges 

incorporated herein to oppose the defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, 

in violation of the EPA. 

 22. Dr. Brodsky has suffered, is now suffering and will continue to suffer certain 

kinds of irreparable injury and monetary damages unless and until this Court grants relief to the 

plaintiff. 

THIRD CLAIM 

 23. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 14 by this reference. 

 24. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she opposed the 

defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, as is set forth in detail in her 

charges of discrimination incorporated herein, in violation of the NYHRL. 

 25. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she filed the EEOC charges 

incorporated herein to oppose the defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, 

in violation of the NYHRL. 

 26. Dr. Brodsky has suffered, is now suffering and will continue to suffer certain 

kinds of irreparable injury and monetary damages unless and until this Court grants relief to the 

plaintiff. 
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FOURTH CLAIM 

 27. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 26 by this reference. 

 28. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she opposed the 

defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, as is set forth in detail in her 

charges of discrimination incorporated herein, in violation of the NYEPL. 

 29. Kaleida Health retaliated against Dr. Brodsky because she filed the EEOC charges 

incorporated herein to oppose the defendant’s discriminatory and retaliatory acts and practices, 

in violation of the NYEPL. 

30. Dr. Brodsky has suffered, is now suffering and will continue to suffer certain kinds of 

irreparable injury and monetary damages unless and until this Court grants relief to the plaintiff. 

REQUEST FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, the plaintiff respectfully requests that this Court: 

 A. Enter a judgment declaring that the acts and practices of the defendant 

complained of herein are in violation of Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the NYEPL; 

 B. Issue a permanent injunction enjoining and permanently restraining these 

violations of Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the NYEPL; 

 C. Issue a permanent injunction requiring and directing the defendants to take such 

affirmative action as is necessary to ensure that the effects of these unlawful acts and practices 

are eliminated and do not continue to affect plaintiff's employment; 

 D. Issue a permanent injunction requiring and directing the defendants to place the 

plaintiff in the position she would have occupied but for defendant’s discriminatory acts and 

practices and retaliatory treatment of her, and make her whole for all earnings and benefits she 

would have received but for defendant’s discriminatory actions and retaliatory treatment; 
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 E. Award to the plaintiff back pay, liquidated damages and front pay (as 

appropriate), as and to the extent allowed by Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the NYEPL; 

 F. Award to the plaintiff compensatory damages as and to the extent allowed by 

Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the NYEPL; 

 G. Award to the plaintiff punitive damages as and to the extent allowed by Title VII 

and the NYHRL; 

H. Award to plaintiff the costs of this action, including her reasonable attorneys’ fees, as and 

to the extent allowed by Title VII, the EPA, the NYHRL and the NYEPL; 

 I. Grant interest and such other and further relief as this Court deems just and 

proper. 

PLAINTIFF DEMANDS A TRIAL BY JURY 

Dated: Buffalo, New York 
 March 27, 2007 
 
      Respectfully submitted, 
 
      KAVINOKY COOK LLP 
 
 
     By:   /s/  Randolph C. Oppenheimer   
      Randolph C. Oppenheimer, Esq. 
      Attorneys for Plaintiff 
      Linda Brodsky, M.D. 
      726 Exchange Street, Suite 800 
      Buffalo, New York 14210 
      Tel. (716) 845-6000 
      Fax (716) 845-6474 
      E-mail:  roppenheimer@kavinokycook.com 
 
05022/24296/285624 
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